

Minutes of the Meeting of the CABINET

Held: MONDAY, 04 SEPTEMBER 2000 at 5.00pm

<u>PRESENT:</u>

<u>Councillor ... - Chair</u> <u>Councillor ... - Vice-Chair</u>

Councillor ... Councillor ... Councillor ... Councillor ... Councillor ... Councillor ... Councillor ...

Councillor ...

* * * * * * * *

1. LEADER'S REPORT

The Chair opened the meeting by thanking Officers and Members for the hard work that had been put into delivering such a massive organisational change in a short space of time.

It was noted that all meetings of the Cabinet would be public and the Chair underlined that the aim of the new structures was to provide a more open and accountable decision making process and the provision of better services.

He referred to some of the main tasks that would be addressed by the Cabinet in the coming months for example; the Budget Strategy, Neighbourhood Renewal and Regeneration issues.

It was also noted that reports to Cabinet would be presented by the relevant Cabinet Member.

2. POLITICAL MANAGEMENT

Councillor Patel, the Cabinet Member for Finance, Resources and Equal Opportunities submitted a report of the Chief Financial Officer seeking approval to new financial regulations required to reflect the new political management structures.

RESOLVED:

(1) that the revised financial regulations as posted on the Intranet, be approved; and

(2) that, under the provisions of Standing Order 42(d), as it is essential that the Council has financial regulations which mirror the new political management arrangements from their inception, no objection be allowed to the above decision.

3. NEW WALK RESTORATION PLAN

Councillor Roberts, the Cabinet Member for Strategic Planning and Regeneration, presented a report of the Director of Environment and Development which outlined progress with the New Walk Restoration Scheme, the bidding process for funding from the Heritage Lottery Fund and recent public response to the proposals, particularly those relating to trees.

The Director of Environment and Development displayed at the meeting plans of an alternative scheme and gave a presentation on these amended proposals.

Further to the presentation, the Chair also put forward an additional proposal, "that Councillor Roberts works with officers to bring forward a vision for a new pedestrian walk, with trees, plants and other green spaces for our City. This will form both a link to the past achievement of New Walk, and a clear and bold statement of the Council's future vision".

RESOLVED:

- (1) that, in the light of comments received from consultation, the planning application for the New Walk Restoration Scheme, as submitted by the Director of Commercial Services, be amended to reflect the amended proposals for De Montfort Square displayed at the meeting; and
- (2) that Councillor Roberts works with officers to bring forward a vision for a new pedestrian walk, with trees, plants and other green spaces for our City.

4. QUAKESICK VALLEY, HAMILTON - SITE DEVELOPMENT GUIDANCE

Councillor Roberts, the Cabinet Member for Strategic Planning and Regeneration submitted a report of the Director of Environment and Development that proposed Site Development Guidance for Quakesick Valley, Hamilton.

RESOLVED:

that the Quakesick Valley Site Development Guidance, as proposed, be adopted as Supplementary Planning Guidance to the City of Leicester Local Plan.

5. NORTHGATE STREET / SANVEY GATE - SITE DEVELOPMENT GUIDANCE

Councillor Roberts, the Cabinet Member for Strategic Planning and Regeneration submitted a report of the Director of Environment Development which proposed Site Development Guidance for Northgate Street/Sanvey Gate.

RESOLVED:

that the Northgate Street/Sanvey Gate Site Development Guidance, as proposed, be adopted as Supplementary Planning Guidance to the City of Leicester Local Plan.

6. SURE START III

Councillor Getliffe, the Cabinet Member for Social Services and Personal Health, submitted a report of the Director of Social Services informing the Cabinet of the progress of the third round of the Sure Start initiative and seeking Cabinet's approval to Saffron being submitted as the third Sure Start area in Leicester. It was noted that the Social Services and Public Health Scrutiny Committee and the Strategic Planning and Regeneration Scrutiny Committee had both supported the proposal.

RESOLVED:

that Saffron be confirmed as the third Sure Start area.

7. LOCAL ENVIRONMENTAL WORKS BUDGET 2000/01

Councillor Patel, the Cabinet Member for Finance, Resources and Equal Opportunities submitted a report of the Director of Environment and Development seeking approval to the release of capital funding for schemes to be funded from the Local Environmental Works Budget 2000-01. It was noted that the programme of works had been approved by the former Planning and Transportation Committee and the former Environment Committee at a total cost of £812,000. Funding of £512,000 was required from capital and £300,000 from revenue budgets.

Ward Councillors would be advised of developments.

RESOLVED:

that approval be given to the release of capital funding of $\pounds 512,000$ for Local Environmental Works Schemes, as follows:-

£000

50

- 1. First Priority Area for Local Environmental Works 250
- 2. Second Priority Area (initial allocation)
- 3. City Wide Block Sum for Environmental Works:-

Laybys

		250
4.	CCAP (Humberstone Gate)	75
5.	City Centre Improvements	60
6.	All Saints Conservation Area (HERS	62
	Scheme)	
7.	New Walk Lottery Contribution	50
8.	Access Grants	15
		812
	Capital	512
	Revenue	300

8. ENVIRONMENT ACT 1995: REVIEW AND ASSESSMENT OF AIR QUALITY

Councillor Holden, the Cabinet Member for Arts, Leisure and the Environment submitted a report of the Director of Environment and Development informing the Cabinet of the Statutory Review and Assessment of Air Quality including proposed Air Quality Management Areas and seeking approval to proposals for consultation on the Review and Assessment report. It was proposed that for the purposes of public consultation a summary leaflet of the report be produced explaining the main findings and explaining how copies of the full report could be viewed. Provision would be made for the translation of these leaflets. The proposed consultation timetable was:-

4 September	Cabinet consideration.	
11 September	Leicestershire Air Quality Forum joint consultation	
27 September	Article appears in October LINK.	
30 September	Exhibition/display at City Rooms (enabling the public to	
13 October	er End of public consultation period	

13 October	End of public consultation period
7 November	Arts, Leisure and Environment Scrutiny
20 November	Report back to Cabinet and declaration of AQMAs.

RESOLVED:

- (1) that the findings of the Air Quality Review and Assessment and proposed Air Quality Management Areas, as detailed in the 'Leicester Air Quality Review and Assessment 2000 Final Report - Consultation Draft", be noted and approved as a basis for consultation; and
- (2) that the consultation proposals be approved with feedback reported to Scrutiny and Cabinet in November.

9. TO PROFILE THE HOUSING SERVICE AND INTRODUCE REPAIRS WEBSITE

Councillor Draycott, the Cabinet Member for Housing gave a presentation profiling the work of the Housing Department and also submitted a report of the Director of Housing seeking approval for the introduction of a Repairs Reporting website which would enable tenants to report repairs via the Internet. A demonstration of the new system was given to Cabinet Members.

RESOLVED:

that the introduction of Repairs Reporting Website, to be launched from 4 September 2000, be approved.

10. LOAN APPLICATION - FULLHURST COMMUNITY COLLEGE

Councillor Subedar, the Cabinet Member for Education and Lifelong Learning, submitted a report of the Director of Education which outlined an application received from Fullhurst Community College for a loan of £75,000 from the Loan Scheme for Schools in order to purchase and upgrade the IT network within the school in response to criticisms in the school's OFSTED report. It was noted that the school was in North Braunstone Ward and not Castle Ward as stated on the papers.

RESOLVED:

that approval be given for a loan from the Loan Scheme for Schools, in the sum of £75,000 to Fullhurst Community College, for the purchase of IT equipment.

11. DATES OF FUTURE MEETINGS

It was noted that the Council, at its meeting on 24 August 2000 had agreed

that there be no meetings of the Cabinet in October. In addition the Cabinet also agreed that it should start its meetings at 5.00pm.

RESOLVED:

that the Cabinet meet on the following dates in 2000 at 5pm:-

Monday 18 September Monday 6 November Monday 20 November Monday 4 December